
TOWN OF HAMDEN

PARKS & RECREATION COMMISION MEETING
HAMDEN GOVERNMENT CENTER 

PARKS & RECREATION  CONFERENCE ROOM
2750 DIXWELL AVENUE

HAMDEN

NOVEMBER 13, 2012
5:30 PM

Commissioners in attendance:  Tad Watson, Chairman
                                                     Rich Leonardo, Vice Chair
            Arnie Mann
                                                     Michael McGarry
                                                     Sarah Morrill
 
Others in attendance:  Mimsie Coleman, Director of Arts, Recreation and Culture
                                       Vinnie Lavorgna, Brooksvale Park Ranger
                                       Peggy Craft, Commission Clerk

CALL TO ORDER

 Chairman Watson called the meeting to order at 5:35 PM

MINUTES

Mr. Leonardo motioned to accept the Minutes of the September 2012 meeting as presented.  Mr. Mann 
seconded the motion that passed unanimously.

Next, Chairman Watson invited Park Ranger Vinnie Lavorgna to address the Commission.  Mr. Lavorgna 
discussed the condition of Brooksvale Park when he took over in 1999.  He discussed the renovation to the 
Veterans Building, the renovation to the residence, and the expansion of the Park.  When Mr. Lavorgna became 
the Park Ranger, the Park covered 195 acres.  Since that time 300 additional acres have been added.  The Park 
now covers approximately 500 acres.  Mr. Lavorgna listed the many improvements and additions that have 
taken place at the park through various grants.  He also discussed the Fall Festival, and how it has grown over 
the years.  He said that over 3,000 people attended the Festival this fall.  He listed the activities that took place 
at this event.

Next, Mr. Lavorgna discussed the use of the Veterans Building.  Mr. Lavorgna, Ms. Coleman and Councilman 
Al Gorman have crafted language that makes the building available for parties for children under 16.  A fee 
structure was also created.  Resident or non-profit organizations are charged $25.00 an hour.  The Picnic 
Pavilion is also available for rental.  There was a discussion regarding where these fees go.  Mr. Lavorgna 
explained that this money is deposited into the General Fund.  Mr. Lavorgna discussed his budget, and the 
changes that have come about since the parks and recreation aspects of the department were separated.  There 
was a lengthy discussion regarding this topic.   

There was a discussion regarding volunteer work at the Park.  He explained how Friends of Brooksvale was 
formed, and how they operate.  



PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 13, 2012
PAGE 2

Mr. Lavorgna discussed the problem with caring for the animals during the winter months.  Friends of 
Brooksvale have begun a project to build a barn to house the animals.  They were contacted by an organization 
that will match any funds that the Friends of Brooksvale raise.  They have raised approximately $30,000 so far.  
It is estimated that this project will cost about $90,000.

Mr. Watson said it is necessary that this Commission define policy regarding Park maintenance that falls under 
this Commission's jurisdiction.  He said we should have Public Works Director Cesare and Chief Administrative 
Officer Leng in attendance at a meeting to define the Commission's jurisdiction.  This topic was discussed at 
length.

Mr. Lavorgna further discussed the proposed barn, and where it would be placed.  Mr. Mann asked where the 
animals are housed now, and if they are safe.  Mr. Lavorgna said they have a three-sided enclosure, which is in 
compliance.  He added that for the storm this month they temporarily moved the animals into the barn.  He said 
it is possible that construction on the new barn could begin in the spring.  Mr. Lavorgna also discussed the 
different types of barns that could be built.

Mr. McGarry asked about the trails in the Park. Mr. Lavorgna said there are approximately 12 miles of trail in 
the Park.  He described these trails and the way they are used.  Mr. McGarry asked about the use of quads and/or 
motorized vehicles on the trail.  Ms. Coleman distributed the ordinance covering use of the parks.  This 
ordinance prohibits the use of these types of vehicles.  Mr. Watson asked about signage on the trail.  He said 
perhaps we should get in touch with the Town Attorney's office regarding use of the trails.  It was noted that this 
ordinance is dated in 1999.  There was a discussion regarding this ordinance, as well as the rules for the use of 
Brooksvale Park.  Mr. Lavorgna said he likes to have the Park accommodate people.  He described how having 
one or two multi-use trails could make mountain biking available in the Park.  Mr. Watson again stressed that it 
is important to get “all parties on board” to set policy on the use of the Park.  

Mr. Mann asked about any accidents or injuries that have occurred at the Park, and any lawsuits that may have 
been filed.  Mr. Lavorgna said there have been very few injuries.  He discussed an injury to a child who was hurt 
when he put his arm through a glass window at the Veterans Building.  A lawsuit was not filed on behalf of the 
injured child.

Mr. Watson noted what an excellent job Mr. Lavorgna has done at the Park.  Mr. Watson told Mr. Lavorgna to 
bring any problems that may arise to the Commission.

Mr. Lavorgna said the most important thing to him is that it is understood that recreation and maintenance must 
work together to be successful.

Mr. Mann pointed out that he feels it is necessary that the Park Ranger have more control over the Park budget, 
so that he would be able to purchase what is necessary for the maintenance of the Park.  There was a discussion 
regarding the present procedure.  Ms. Coleman said this is something that would be good to discuss with Mr. 
Cesare.   There was a lengthy discussion regarding how Communications 

between the parties involved could be improved.  Mr. Lavorgna said that he works well with his maintainer 
Eddie Colavolpe, as well as Mr. Cesare and Mr. Torgerson.  He said the problem is being able to order supplies 
and necessities for the Park.  He said it would be much more efficient if he could have control over the budget 
and purchasing process.  Ms. Coleman said she continues to work with Mr. Cesare to work out any problems 
that have occurred or may occur due to the split in the department.  



PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 13, 2012
PAGE 3

There was a discussion regarding the Hamden Bowman.  Mr. Lavorgna said their area of approximately 15 
acres, was located near a very popular trail.  He pointed out the danger this entailed.  Their lease has expired, 
and they will no longer be having meets at the Park.  Mr. Lavorgna said he appreciated the Commission's 
support in working this out.  There was a discussion regarding this subject.

There was a discussion regarding the horseshoe pits that have been installed at Brooksvale.  Mr. Watson said he 
would like to see horseshoe pits installed in DeNicola Park.

Mr. Watson thanked Mr. Lavorgna for his presentation, and assured him that the Commission appreciates his 
work, and will support him.

DEPARTMENT HEADS REPORT

Ms. Coleman distributed a report on the work done by the Parks Division crew in the month of October.

Next, she discussed Morretti Park, and the grant for the work there.  She explained that the former Grant Writer, 
Florence Villano, has resigned, and Ms. Coleman has taken over the folder on this project.  She said they are 
waiting for the contract with the State to be signed, but some work can go forward.  The Parks Division will be 
doing the leveling and reseeding.  There was a discussion regarding this topic. 

OLD BUSINESS

Mr. Watson asked about the possible appointment of new Commissioners.  In particular he asked if former 
Commissioner Richard Schultz has been appointed.   Commission Clerk Craft will bring a list of 
Commissioners and term expiration dates to the next meeting.

NEW BUSINESS

Mr. McGarry discussed the area behind the Hamden Middle School.  He said the cleanup of this area would be 
his next project.  Mr. McGarry said this is where the “stump dump” was.  

There was a discussion regarding the drainage hole in the left field area of the Middle School baseball field.  
There was a discussion regarding this problem.

ADJOURNMENT
  
There was no further business to come before the Commission, and Chairman Watson called for a motion to 
adjourn.  Commissioner Mann motioned to adjourn.  Commissioner Morrill seconded the motion that 
passed unanimously.  

Submitted by: _____________________________
                       Peggy Craft, Commission Clerk


